Butler Metropolitan Housing Authority

RFP 22-05 Snow Removal Services August 2022

Table of Contents

1.0	Introductions to Proposers	4
1.1	Preparation of Proposals	4
1.2	Explanation to Prospective Proposers	4
1.3	Questions	4
1.4	Amendments to Solicitation	5
1.5	Proposal Requirements	Ę
1.6	Time for Receiving Proposals	6
1.7	Proposal Withdrawal	6
1.8	Proposal Submission	6
1.9	Late, Submissions, Modifications, and Withdrawal of Proposals	7
1.10	Evaluation of Proposals	7
1.11	Responsibility of Prospective Proposer	8
1.12	Negotiations with Selected Proposer	8
1.13	Contract Award	8
1.14	Contract Term	8
1.15	Review of Services	8
1.16	Service of Protest	ç
1.17	Notice of Award	ć
1.18	Commencement of Work	ξ
1.19	Cost of Producing Proposal	ć
1.20	Submission Conditions	ξ
1.21	Qualifications of Proposers	Ş
1.22	Public Records	10
1.23	Suspended/Debarred	10
1.24	Key Personnel	10
1.25	Assignments	10
1.26	Termination	10
1.27	MBE/FBE/Section 3	1
1.28	Laws to be Observed	11
1.29	Licensing Requirements	11
1.30	Hold Harmless Clause	1
1.31	Breach of Contract	11
1.32	Complaints	1.
1.33	Compensation	1
1.34	Final Payment	1
1.35	Resident Council Meeting	1
1.36	Pre-Proposal Conference	12
1.37	Property Damage	1:
1.38	Trial Period	1:
2.0	Specifications	1:
2.1	Scope of Work	1
2.2	Sites for Snow Removal	1
2.3	Separate Push	1:
2.4	Drifting	1
2.5	De-Icer/ Sand Application	1
2.6	Equipment	1
2.7	Cost Submission	1
A 1		
3.0	Submission Requirements	1
4.0	Evaluation Criteria	1
5.0	Exhibit A - Proposal Form / Required Forms	1

Request for Proposal

The Butler Metropolitan Housing Authority (BMHA) will receive proposals for the following services:

Scope of Services: Snow Removal Services

Closing Time: 4:00 p.m.

Closing Date: September 14, 2022

Where: Butler Metropolitan Housing Authority

Procurement Department

4110 Hamilton-Middletown Road

Hamilton, OH 45011

Phone: (513) 868-5238 Fax: (513) 896-9381

A contract will be awarded to the lowest priced responsive, responsible proposer who has complied with the conditions of the specifications.

Statements received after the stated time and date will not be considered.

An information packet will be provided upon request or may be obtained at the BMHA Procurement Department located at 4110 Hamilton-Middletown Road, Hamilton, OH 45011. Questions regarding the specifications should be directed to Michelle Graham (513) 868-5238.

BMHA reserves the right to cancel this Request for Proposal (RFP), or to reject, in whole or in part, any and all submissions received in response to this Request for Proposal, upon its determination that such cancellation or rejection is in the best interest of BMHA. BMHA further reserves the right to waive any minor informalities or the failure of any proposer to comply therewith, if it is in the public interest to do so. BMHA will pay no compensation to any proposer for any costs related to preparation or submittal of the qualifications.

The award will be funded by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and administered by BMHA. HUD reserves the right to review and approve the contract documents and the firm selected by the BMHA.

Pursuant to establish BMHA and HUD Affirmative Action and Equal Employment Opportunity goals, all proposers are advised they must satisfy the goal to utilize qualified minority businesses to perform the subcontract work or supply materials and/or equipment for the project and workforce content.

BMHA reserves the right to terminate a contract awarded pursuant to this RFP, at any time for its convenience upon ten (10) days written notice to the successful prosper.

BUTLER METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY By: Michelle Graham, Procurement/Budget Assistant

1.0 Instructions to Proposers

Introduction

This Request for Proposal (RFP) identifies the requirements that are considered to be the minimum required by BMHA. This RFP attempts to provide the proposer with sufficient information to fully understand BMHA's requirements and the environment in which the proposal must be developed and operate. Notwithstanding any of the specific details described in this RFP, it will be the obligation of the proposer to provide a service that works in the accomplishment of the requirements identified in this document. To aid the evaluation team in fully understanding each proposal submitted, and to ensure that full awareness is given to each aspect of the proposal, any deviation from the requirements specified in this document must be clearly noted and referenced to the subject area of the RFP.

1.1 Preparation of Proposals

Proposers are expected to examine the statement of work, the proposed contract terms and conditions, and all instructions. Failure to do so will be at the proposer's risk.

Each proposer shall furnish the information required by the solicitation. The proposer shall sign the proposal and print or type its name on the cover sheet and each continuation sheet on which it makes an entry. Erasures or other changes must be initialed by the person signing the proposal. Proposals signed by an agent shall be accompanied by evidence of that agent's authority, unless that evidence has been previously furnished to BMHA.

Proposals for services other than those specified will not be considered.

1.2 Explanation to Prospective Proposers

Any prospective proposer desiring an explanation or interpretation of the solicitation, statement of work, etc. must request it **in writing** before closing date. Oral explanations or instructions given before the reward of the contract will not be binding. Any information given to a prospective proposer concerning a solicitation will be furnished promptly to all other prospective proposers as an amendment of the solicitation if that information is necessary in submitting proposals or if the lack of it would be prejudicial to any other prospective proposer.

1.3 Questions

All questions shall be submitted **in writing** (postal mail, fax, or e-mail) and should be addressed to:

Michelle Graham
Procurement/Budget Assistant
4110 Hamilton-Middletown Road
Hamilton, OH 45011
Fax # (513) 896-9381

Email Address: mgraham@butlermetro.org

Questions may be submitted until 12:00 pm eastern time August 31, 2022. Answers and responses will be distributed to all prospective proposers after that date.

1.4 Amendments to Solicitation

If the solicitation is amended, then all terms and conditions, which are not modified, remain unchanged. Proposers must acknowledge receipt of any amendments to this solicitation by signing and returning the amendment. BMHA must receive the acknowledgement by the time specified for receipt of proposals. Failure to acknowledge all amendments may result in rejection of submission.

The Authority will endeavor to provide copies of addenda to all potential proposers to which this Request for Proposal has been mailed, but it will be the responsibility of each proposer to make inquiry as to the existence and content of addenda or amendments, as the same shall become part of this Request for Proposal and all proposers will be bound thereby, whether or not the addenda are actually received by the proposer.

All addenda may be downloaded from <u>www.butlermetro.org</u>, or may be obtained by contacting Procurement/Budget Assistant listed in Section 1.3.

1.5 Proposal Requirements

Proposal forms must be signed by an individual authorized to execute contracts for the company in order to be accepted.

These forms, required at the time of submission, must be signed and provided to BMHA.

- Debarment Certification for Prime and all levels of Sub-Consultants (HUD 2992).
- Instructions to Offerors (HUD-5369-B)
- General Conditions for Non-Construction Contracts (HUD-5370-C).
- A completed Representation Certifications and Other Statements of Bidders Form (HUD-5369-C).
- Declaration regarding material assistance to terrorist organizations (HLS 0038).
- Non-Collusive Affidavit for prime and all levels of Sub-Consultants
- Certificate of Corporate Good Standing for Prime and all levels of Sub-proposers
- Within ten (10) days of notice of award, the following will be requested:
 - Proof of the appropriate insurance coverage:
 - Workers' Compensation Statutory Amount
 - \$500,000 Automobile liability on owned, non-owned and hired motor vehicles used in connection with this contract
 - A "Certificate of Insurance" must name the BUTLER METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY as "third party insured"
 - General Liability \$500,000

Proof of coverage shall be maintained uninterrupted for the duration of the contract. Failure to maintain coverage shall be considered in default of the contract and will be grounds for the contracting officer to terminate the contract for default.

Workmen's Compensation, in accordance with State Law for all employees engaged under this contract. Proof of Workmen's Compensation coverage shall be maintained uninterrupted for the duration of the contract. Failure to maintain a current valid uninterrupted Workers' Compensation certificate will be ground for the contracting officer to terminate the contract for default.

1.6 Time for Receiving Proposals

Proposals received prior to the closing date and time will be securely kept, unopened. The officer, whose duty it is to open them, will decide when the specified time has arrived. No proposal received after the specific time will be considered. The timestamp machine at the receptionist desk at 4110 Hamilton-Middletown Road Hamilton, OH 45011 will serve as the official time clock.

1.7 Proposal Withdrawal

No proposal shall be withdrawn for a period of Ninety (90) days subsequent to the opening of the proposals without written consent of BMHA.

1.8 Proposal Submission

Proposals must be submitted to BMHA by September 14, 2022 at 2:00 p.m. (local time) without exception, at the following address to be eligible for consideration:

Butler Metropolitan Housing Authority Procurement Department 4110 Hamilton-Middletown Road Hamilton, OH 45011-6218

One original copy of the proposal, plus three exact copies marked "Copy" are required. The cost proposal should be attached only with "original" proposal.

To assure that your proposal arrives at the proper place, on time, and to prevent opening by unauthorized individuals, your proposal must be identified on the envelope of package as follows:

Request for Proposal To Provide: Snow Removal Services Solicitation No. RFP 22-05 Due: 9/14/22 2:00 p.m.

Proposals shall be submitted in sealed envelopes or packages using forms furnished by BMHA. All required forms shall be submitted in the envelope or package(s), which will clearly be marked "Proposal Documents" and will show the project name and number, name of proposer and the date and time when proposals are due. Once received by BMHA, proposals will not be returned.

All submissions are the property of the Authority and shall be retained by the Authority. Responses will not be returned. The contents of the documents submitted by the successful proposer(s) may become part of any contract award at the sole discretion of the Authority.

Facsimile proposals, modifications or withdrawals will not be considered.

Negative or zero prices will cause the whole submission to be deemed a non-responsive submission.

BMHA may reject any proposal as non-responsive if it is materially unbalanced as to the prices for the various items of work to be performed. A proposal is materially unbalanced when it is based on prices significantly less than cost for some work and prices which are significantly overstated for other work.

1.9 Late Submissions, Modifications, and Withdrawal of Proposals

Any proposal received at the place designated in the solicitation after the exact time specified for receipt will not be considered.

A modification resulting from BMHA's request for "best and final" proposal received after the time and date specified in the in the request will not be considered unless received before award and the late receipt is due solely to mishandling by BMHA after receipt by BMHA.

The only acceptable evidence to establish the time of receipt at BMHA is the time/date stamp of BMHA on the proposal wrapper or other documentary evidence of receipt maintained by BMHA.

Notwithstanding this provision, a late modification of an otherwise successful proposal that makes its term more favorable to BMHA will be considered at any time it is received and may be accepted.

1.10 Evaluation of Proposals

Within ninety (90) days after receipt of proposals, BMHA will complete a review of all qualifications.

The Procurement Section will conduct an initial review process. This review of all proposals submitted to establish responsiveness and responsibility according to the submission of required documents on the part of the proposer.

Upon establishment of responsiveness, the technical and price evaluation phase would begin. An internal Evaluation Team will be assigned to this project. Their responsibility is to: (1) thoroughly review each proposer's proposal, (2) rate each proposer's proposal by awarding a point value to each of the evaluation and selection criteria.

Each proposer will ultimately end up with a score based upon the points assigned to the evaluation factors by each team member. All individual factors will be added to obtain an accumulated total score. At this point the Authority may decide, at its sole discretion, to enter into negotiations with the highest rated proposer.

Should the Authority deem it advisable to obtain clarification, proposers yielding clearly competitively high scores during the first phase evaluation may then be invited to a technical question and answer conference to be held at a specific time and date scheduled by the Procurement Officer. **Not all proposers may be asked to make such oral presentations**.

During this oral evaluation phase BMHA may, at its discretion, request any one or all proposers to make oral presentations. If invited to participate, at this point, based on their oral presentations, proposers will again be evaluated on the technical evaluation factors.

In consideration of the evaluation team's final scores, BMHA intends to enter into negotiations with, and award a contract to, the highest ranked proposer(s) based on the points received for the **oral evaluation** phase.

The decision as to who shall receive a contract award, or whether or not an award shall be made as a result of this request for proposal shall be at the sole discretion of the Authority. In addition, multiple awards may be made.

1.11 Responsibility of Prospective Proposer

BMHA shall award a contract only to a responsible prospective proposer who is able to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of the proposed contract. To be determined responsible, a prospective proposer must:

- Have adequate financial resources to perform the contract, or the ability to obtain them:
- Have a satisfactory record of integrity and business ethics;
- Have a satisfactory record of compliance with public policy (i.e. Equal Employments Opportunity); and
- Not have been suspended, debarred, or otherwise determined to be ineligible for award
 of Contracts by the Department of the U.S. Government. Current lists of ineligible
 proposers are available for inspection.

Before a proposal is considered for award, the proposer may be requested by the BMHA to submit a statement or other documentation regarding any of the foregoing requirements. Failure by the proposer to provide additional information may render the proposer ineligible for award.

1.12 Negotiations with Selected Proposer

Once the evaluation process is complete, BMHA will negotiate with the highest ranked proposer. The negotiations will include clarifying the specific scope of work, performance period, and determining the final cost of the scope of work. If BMHA and the highest ranked proposer fail to reach an agreement, BMHA may negotiate with the next highest ranked proposer to reach an agreement, unless BMHA determines that it is in the best interest to re-solicit for these services.

1.13 Contract Award

The contract(s) will be awarded to the most responsive and responsible firm, which is most advantageous to BMHA provided the proposal complies with all conditions of the Request for Proposal (RFP). BMHA reserves the right to reject any and all proposals and to waive any informality in the solicitation. BMHA is prohibited from making an award to firms (including subproposers) or any individuals that are on the list of firms ineligible to receive from the United States Governments, as furnished by HUD.

1.14 Contract Term

The Contract term is for two (2) years, effective November 1, 2022 thru October 31, 2024, with the Authority having the option to renew for three (3) additional one-year periods at no additional cost to the Authority, effective November 1, 2024 thru October 31, 2025, November 1, 2025 thru October 31, 2026, and November 1, 2026 thru October 31, 2027.

1.15 Review of Services

90 days prior to the end of the twenty-fourth (24th) month of the initial contract BMHA will evaluate the contractor to determine whether the optional renewal period should be considered. This evaluation will be based on the productivity of the Contractor, as specified by BMHA. The Contractor agrees to provide BMHA with any and all information that BMHA deems necessary and pertaining to the service for evaluation.

By mutual consent of BMHA and the Contractor, the contract may be renewed for three (3) additional twelve (12) month periods ending October 31, 2027. This option shall be automatically

exercised unless written notice to the contrary is filed with either party not later than 90 days prior to the current contract period expiration date. It is understood and agreed that the contract may be renewed only at the same prices and under the same conditions governing the original contract.

1.16 Service of Protest

Any protest against the award of a contract to this solicitation shall be served on BMHA by obtaining written and dated acknowledgement of receipt from BMHA at the address shown on the cover of this solicitation. Any protest against the solicitation must be received before the due date for the receipt of proposal or proposals, and any protest against the award of a contract must be received within ten (10) calendar days after the award of the contract, or the protest will not be considered. All proposal protests shall be in writing, submitted to the contracting officer, who shall issue a written decision on the matter. The determination of BMHA with regard to such protest or to proceed to award notwithstanding such protest shall be final unless the protestor makes an appeal.

1.17 Notice of Award

All proposers will be notified by mail of BMHA's selection as soon as possible. A successful proposer will be issued a Notice of Award.

1.18 Commencement of Work

The selected firm will be expected to begin work within ten (10) days of receipt of the Notice to Proceed

1.19 Cost of Producing Proposal

The cost of producing proposals is the responsibility of the proposer. BMHA will not reimburse any cost incurred to produce and to respond to this solicitation, to participate in oral presentation or to participate in negotiations with BMHA for any proposal.

1.20 Submission Conditions

Do not fold or make any additional marks, notations or requirements on the documents to be submitted. Proposers are not allowed to change the conditions or specifications contained herein by making or entering onto these documents or the documents submitted any revisions or additional and if any such additional marks, notations or requirements are entered on any of the documents that are submitted to BMHA by the proposer, such may invalidate the proposal. If, after accepting such a proposal, BMHA decides that any such entry has not changed the intent of the proposal that BMHA intended to receive, BMHA may accept the proposal and the proposal shall be considered by BMHA as if those additional marks, notations or requirements were not entered on such.

1.21 Qualifications of Proposers

BMHA may make such reasonable investigations as deemed proper and necessary to determine the ability of the proposer to perform the services and the proposer shall furnish to BMHA all such information and data for this purpose as may be requested. BMHA reserves the right to inspect the proposer's physical facilities prior to award to satisfy questions regarding the proposer's capabilities. BMHA further reserves the right to reject any proposal if the evidence submitted by,

or investigations of, such proposers are not properly qualified to carry out the obligations of the contract and to provide the services described therein.

1.22 Public Records

Proposers acknowledge that Butler Metropolitan Housing Authority is a political subdivision of the state of Ohio and is, therefore, required to comply with the Ohio Public Information Act. If a proposal includes proprietary data, trade secrets, or information the proposer wishes to except from public disclosure, then the proposer must specifically label each page containing such data, secrets, or information as follows:

"PRIVILIGED AND CONFIDENTIAL - PROPRIETARY INFORMATION"

To the extent permitted by law, information labeled by the proposer as proprietary will be used by BMHA only for purposes related to or arising out of the (a) evaluation of proposes (b) selection of a proposer pursuant to the RFP process, and (c) negotiation and execution of a contract, if any, with the proposer selected.

Neither a proposal, in its entirety, nor the cost section of a proposal will be considered confidential/proprietary. Any proposal marked as such will be deemed non-responsible and eliminated from further consideration.

1.23 Suspended/Debarred

The Authority will reject the qualifications of any proposer who is suspended and/or debarred by HUD from providing services to public housing authorities and reserves the right to reject the proposal of any proposer who has previously failed to perform any contract properly for the Authority.

1.24 Key Personnel

The key personnel specified by the successful proposal will be considered essential to the work to performed by the successful proposer. Prior to diverting any of the key personnel for any reason, the proposers shall notify the Authority in writing at least thirty (30) days in advance and shall submit justification (including proposed substitutions) in sufficient detail to permit evaluation of the impact on the contract. The firm shall not change key personnel or hours to be devoted, before or after contract award, without written permission from the Authority.

1.25 Assignments

Unless otherwise agreed to by BMHA's contracting officer, the proposer shall not assign the contract to any other party.

1.26 Termination

Termination may occur for (but is not limited to) the following reasons:

- Proposer fails to perform any provisions within the contract
- Proposer fails to supply ample skilled workman
- Proposer disregards any laws, ordinances, rules or regulations
- · HUD funding to the authority is curtailed or reduced
- The convenience of the Authority

1.27 MBE/FBE/Section 3

The Authority has established a goal of 30% Section 3, 20% Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) and 5% Female Business Enterprise (FBE) for contracts exceeding \$10,000. Please indicate the MBE/FBE/Section 3 percentage for your company on the proposal form.

1.28 Laws to be Observed

Proposer warrants compliance with all Federal, State, and Locals laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations and the orders and decrees of any courts and administrative bodies or offices in any manner affecting the performance of this contract. Fees and/or costs associated with such compliance are the responsibility of the proposer and not payable to the Authority.

1.29 Licensing Requirements

Proposer shall maintain all licenses required by local, state and federal laws.

1.30 Hold Harmless Clause

The proposer will hold BMHA harmless from any and all negligent actions the proposer or their employee/s cause.

1.31 Breach of Contract

Any breach of this contract will result in the Authority withholding payment to the proposer until satisfactory results are obtained.

1.32 Complaints

All complaints concerning unfinished or unsatisfactory work will be forwarded to the proposer by the Authority. If these complaints are not resolved or satisfactory arrangements are not made within forty-eight hours following the receipt of the complaint, the Authority may, at its options, have the work completed in another manner and the cost of such work be deducted from the payment of the proposer.

1.33 Compensation

The proposer is to submit, at the end of each calendar month, an invoice (with proof of service attached) for all services performed during that month. The Authority will issue payment within 30 days of receipt of invoice

Any additional work, not a part of the specifications, must be approved by the Authority on a separate P.O. in order to receive payment.

1.34 Final Payment

Proposer will furnish any required permits and supply all needed affidavits and lien releases for all labor and materials prior to final payment.

1.35 Resident Council Meeting

Proposer shall attend resident council meetings as requested by BMHA.

1.36 Pre-Proposal Conference

There will not be a pre-bid conference with this RFP.

1.37 Property Damage

Contractor is to take extreme care not to damage or destroy the Authority or resident's property, including but not limited to personal, building and vehicles. Should any damage be determined, the contractor is expected to settle the loss in an expeditious and professional manner.

1.38 Trial Period

If the selected offeror meeting specifications has not previously performed like services for the Butler Metropolitan Housing Authority, the Authority reserves the right to request the services for a trial period. Such a period is to be designated by appropriate Authority personnel to determine that the offeror will perform to the Authority's complete satisfaction. If a trial period is requested, all terms and conditions of the proposal shall apply, and the Contractor shall provide documentation prior to commencement of any work.

NOTE:

Each bidder may visit the site of each of the listed subdivision and fully acquaint oneself with the conditions relating to the property to be serviced, so that they may be fully understand the facilities difficulties and restrictions. The failure or omission of any bidder to visit each subdivision site shall in no way relieve any obligation to the proposal or the contract.

2.0 Specifications

2.1 Scope of Work

In accordance with the terms and conditions set forth, contractor will furnish all tools, materials, equipment and labor necessary to execute the snow removal program in a competent and professional manner.

Plowing will be done in a neat, clean way so that every possible space will be available. Snow will be pushed outward and away from the buildings and there will be no significant wind rows or piles of snow on the parking area; all snow will be pushed to the outer perimeter of the plow area or area designated by the Maintenance Director or his assignee.

2.2 Sites for Snow Removal

53-3	Henry Long Towers 150 South B Street	Hamilton, OH
53-12	Jackson Bosch (Petty Drive) Timberhill Drive off Millville	Hamilton, OH
52-14	Dayton Lane Gardens 122 North 6 th Street	Hamilton, OH
54-17	Mark Petty Plaza 115 Knapp Drive	Hamilton, OH
COCC	Terry R. Kimmons Admin. Center 4110 Hamilton-Middletown Road	Hamilton, OH
55-43	The Townhouse 600 North Verity Parkway	Middletown, OH
56-41	Townhomes West 1820 South Main Street	Middletown, OH
55-05	Ross Hunt Towers 112 South Clinton Street	Middletown, OH
57-06	Concord Green 601-627 Concord	Middletown, OH
57-07	Freedom Court 4600 Freedom Court	Middletown, OH
56-08	Midtonia Village 2393 South Sutphin Avenue	Middletown, OH

2.3 Separate Push

The entire plow areas will be pushed when snowfall reaches 2" or more. In the event of a reaccumulation of 2" or more of snow with the approval of the Maintenance Director or his assignee to do so, there will be another charge for the push.

2.4 Drifting

If drifting occurs after the lot has been plowed, a charge may be made by the contractor if approved by the Authority. Please indicate an hourly rate for this charge on the space provided on the Proposal Form.

2.5 De-Icer/Sand Application

If requested by the Authority, chemical de-icer and/or sand will be applied to the entire parking areas when all snow is cleared off. Please indicate an individual price on the Proposal Form for salt/sand application.

2.6 Equipment

Contractor is required to list all equipment at the time of submitting this proposal.

2.7 Cost Submission

Submit cost only for All cities (Option 1) <u>or</u> one individual city (Option 2 or 3). Indicate an individual price on the Proposal Form for each site per push of the option you choose. Per section 1.10 above, BMHA reserves the right to make multiple awards.

3.0 Submission Requirements

- Completed Proposal Form
- Three (3) references of previous work similar to this project and show company name, contact person, address, phone and fax number, and email address.
- Debarment Certification for Prime and all levels of Sub-Consultants (HUD 2992).
- Instructions to Offerors (HUD-5369-B)
- General Conditions for Non-Construction Contracts (HUD-5370-C).
- A completed Representation Certifications and Other Statements of Bidders Form (HUD-5369-C).
- Declaration regarding material assistance to terrorist organizations (HLS 0038).
- Non-Collusive Affidavit for prime and all levels of Sub-Consultants
- Certificate of Corporate Good Standing for Prime and all levels of Sub-proposers

4.0 Evaluation Criteria

Proposals received in response to this RFP will be evaluated by BMHA staff. Only those proposals from firms which are complete and responsive to the specification set forth in consideration of this RFP will be selected for future consideration.

The evaluation factors listed below will be used as a mechanism for fairly and thoroughly evaluating the proposals submitted. The Authority will select winning respondent based upon the following evaluation criteria and the Authority's particular needs.

Capacity 25 Points

- Number of employees and trucks
- Have adequate amount of equipment and employees to handle multiple properties in a short time period

Reliability and Dependability

30 Points

- Number of years in business, and has shown signs of growth and prosperity.
- Adequate references, from a similar industry, who will vouch for a company's level of performance
- Ability to perform the services as reflected by general experience, and specific experience in providing the required services
- Qualified personnel to be assigned to the contract

MBE/FBE/Section 3 15 Points

- The Authority has established a goal of 30% Section 3, 20%
 Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) and 5% Female Business
 Enterprise (FBE) for contracts exceeding \$10,000.
- Section 3 is a provision of the Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Act of 1968 that helps foster local economic development, Neighborhood economic improvement, and individual self-sufficiency. The Section 3program requires that recipients of certain HUD financial assistance, to the greatest extent feasible, provide job training, employment, and contracting opportunities for low- or very-low income residents in connection with projects and activities in their neighborhoods.

Cost 30 Points

Total: 100 Points

Exhibit A

Proposal Form Butler Metropolitan Housing Authority RFP 22-05 Snow Removal Services

OPTION 1: ALL SITES

Snow Removal will be performed on the following named properties:

		Snow	Application Chemical De-Icer	Sand
53-03	Henry Long Towers 150 South B Street	\$	\$	\$
53-12	Jackson Bosch (Petty Dr.) Timberhill Dr. off Millville	\$	\$	\$
52-14	Dayton Lane Gardens 122 North 6 th St.	\$	\$	\$
54-17	Mark Petty Plaza 115 Knapp Dr.	\$	\$	\$
cocc	Kimmons Admin. Center 4110 Hamilton-Middletown Rd.	\$	\$	\$
55-43	The Townhouse 600 North Verity Parkway	\$	\$	\$
56-41	Townhomes West 1820 South Main St.	\$	\$	\$
55-05	Ross Hunt Towers 112 South Clinton St.	\$	\$	\$
57-06	Concord Green 601-627 Concord	\$	\$	\$
57-07	Freedom Court 4600 Freedom Court	\$	\$	\$
56-08	Midtonia Village 2393 South Sutphin Ave.	\$	\$	\$
	Total Price:	\$	\$	\$

OPTION 2: HAMILTON SITES ONLY

Snow Removal will be performed on the following named properties:

		Snow	Application Chemical De-Icer	Sand
53-03	Henry Long Towers 150 South B Street	\$	\$	\$
53-12	Jackson Bosch (Petty Dr.) Timberhill Dr. off Millville	\$	\$	\$
52-14	Dayton Lane Gardens 122 North 6 th St.	\$	\$	\$
54-17	Mark Petty Plaza 115 Knapp Dr.	\$	\$	\$
COCC	Kimmons Admin. Center 4110 Hamilton-Middletown Rd.	\$	\$	\$
	Total Price:	\$	\$	\$

OPTION 3: MIDDLETOWN SITES ONLY

Snow Removal will be performed on the following named properties:

	Total Price:	\$ \$	\$
56-08	Midtonia Village 2393 South Sutphin Ave.	\$ \$	\$
57-07	Freedom Court 4600 Freedom Court	\$ \$	\$
57-06	Concord Green 601-627 Concord	\$ \$	\$
55-05	Ross Hunt Towers 112 South Clinton St.	\$ \$	\$
56-41	Townhomes West 1820 South Main St.	\$ \$	\$
55-43	The Townhouse 600 North Verity Parkway	\$ \$	\$

If drifting occurs after the lot has been plowed, a charge may be made by the contractor, if approved by the Authority.

Please indica	ated hourly rate	for this contract: \$	
Please indicat	te the MBE/FBE	/Section 3 Percentage for your compar	ıy:
MBE:	FBE:	Section 3:	
Received Add	dendum No	(If Applicable)	·
Signed:			
Title:			
Representing	•		
Address:			
Telephone: _			
E-Mail:		and the second s	

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS

Name	of Company
Numb	er of Employees
Numb	er of Trucks
Specia	alized Equipment
Other	Information

SNOW REMOVAL SERVICES REFERENCE SHEET

Three (3) references of previous work similar to this project and show company name, contact person, address, phone and fax number, and email address.

COMPANY NAME		
CONTACT PERSON		
ADDRESS		
	FAX	
EMAIL ADDRESS		
COMPANY NAME		
CONTACT PERSON		
ADDRESS		
	FAX	
EMAIL ADDRESS		
COMPANY NAME		
ADDRESS		
PHONE	FAX	
EMAIL ADDRESS		

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Certification Regarding Debarment and Suspension

Certification A: Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

- 1. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that its principals;
- a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal debarment or agency;
- b. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification, or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
- c. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and
- d. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/ proposal had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default.
- 2. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

Instructions for Certification (A)

- 1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective primary participant is providing the certification set out below.
- 2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of participation in this covered transaction. The prospective participant shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection with the department or agency's determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction.
- 3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was place when the department or agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency may terminate this transaction for cause of default.

- 4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the department or agency to whom this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.
- 5. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered transaction, participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the department or agency to which this proposal is being submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of these regulations.
- 6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency entering into this transaction.
- 7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion Lower Tier Covered Transaction," provided by the department or agency entering into this covered transaction, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.
- 8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines this eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List.
- 9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.
- 10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph (6) of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency may terminate this transaction for cause of default.

Certification B: Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

- 1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.
- 2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

Instructions for Certification (B)

- 1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the certification set out below.
- 2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.
- 3. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.
- 4. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered transaction, participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the person to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of these regulations.

- 5. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated.
- 6. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include this clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion Lower Tier Covered Transaction," without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.
- 7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List.
- 8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.
- 9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph (5) of these instructions, if a participant in a lower covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies including suspension and/or debarment.

Applicant		Date
Signature of Authorized Certifying Official	Title	

Instructions to Offerors Non-Construction

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Office of Public and Indian Housing



- 03291 -

1. Preparation of Offers

- (a) Offerors are expected to examine the statement of work, the proposed contract terms and conditions, and all instructions. Failure to do so will be at the offeror's risk.
- (b) Each offeror shall furnish the information required by the solicitation. The offeror shall sign the offer and print or type its name on the cover sheet and each continuation sheet on which it makes an entry. Erasures or other changes must be initialed by the person signing the offer. Offers signed by an agent shall be accompanied by evidence of that agent's authority, unless that evidence has been previously furnished to the HA.
- (c) Offers for services other than those specified will not be considered.

2. Submission of Offers

- (a) Offers and modifications thereof shall be submitted in sealed envelopes or packages (1) addressed to the office specified in the solicitation, and (2) showing the time specified for receipt, the solicitation number, and the name and address of the offeror.
- (b) Telegraphic offers will not be considered unless authorized by the solicitation; however, offers may be modified by written or telegraphic notice.
- (c) Facsimile offers, modifications or withdrawals will not be considered unless authorized by the solicitation.

3. Amendments to Solicitations

- (a) If this solicitation is amended, then all terms and conditions which are not modified remain unchanged.
- (b) Offerors shall acknowledge receipt of any amendments to this solicitation by
 - (1) signing and returning the amendment;
 - (2) identifying the amendment number and date in the space provided for this purpose on the form for submitting an offer,
 - (3) letter or telegram, or
 - (4) facsimile, if facsimile offers are authorized in the solicitation. The HA/HUD must receive the acknowledgment by the time specified for receipt of offers.

4. Explanation to Prospective Offerors

Any prospective offeror desiring an explanation or interpretation of the solicitation, statement of work, etc., must request it in writing soon enough to allow a reply to reach all prospective offerors before the submission of their offers. Oral explanations or instructions given before the award of the contract will not be binding. Any information given to a prospective offeror concerning a solicitation will be furnished promptly to all other prospective offerors as an amendment of the solicitation, if that information is necessary in submitting offers or if the lack of it would be prejudicial to any other prospective offerors.

5. Responsibility of Prospective Contractor

- (a) The HA shall award a contract only to a responsible prospective contractor who is able to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of the proposed contract. To be determined responsible, a prospective contractor must -
 - Have adequate financial resources to perform the contract, or the ability to obtain them;

- (2) Have a satisfactory performance record;
- (3) Have a satisfactory record of integrity and business ethics;
- (4) Have a satisfactory record of compliance with public policy (e.g., Equal Employment Opportunity); and
- (5) Not have been suspended, debarred, or otherwise determined to be ineligible for award of contracts by the Department of Housing and Urban Development or any other agency of the U.S. Government. Current lists of ineligible contractors are available for inspection at the HA/HUD.
- (b) Before an offer is considered for award, the offeror may be requested by the HA to submit a statement or other documentation regarding any of the foregoing requirements. Failure by the offeror to provide such additional information may render the offeror ineligible for award.

6. Late Submissions, Modifications, and Withdrawal of Offers

- (a) Any offer received at the place designated in the solicitation after the exact time specified for receipt will not be considered unless it is received before award is made and it -
 - (1) Was sent by registered or certified mail not later than the fifth calendar day before the date specified for receipt of offers (e.g., an offer submitted in response to a solicitation requiring receipt of offers by the 20th of the month must have been mailed by the 15th);
 - (2) Was sent by mail, or if authorized by the solicitation, was sent by telegram or via facsimile, and it is determined by the HA/ HUD that the late receipt was due solely to mishandling by the HA/HUD after receipt at the HA;
 - (3) Was sent by U.S. Postal Service Express Mail Next Day Service - Post Office to Addressee, not later than 5:00 p.m. at the place of mailing two working days prior to the date specified for receipt of proposals. The term "working days" excludes weekends and U.S. Federal holidays; or
 - (4) Is the only offer received.
- (b) Any modification of an offer, except a modification resulting from the HA's request for "best and final" offer (if this solicitation is a request for proposals), is subject to the same conditions as in subparagraphs (a)(1), (2), and (3) of this provision.
- (c) A modification resulting from the HA's request for "best and final" offer received after the time and date specified in the request will not be considered unless received before award and the late receipt is due solely to mishandling by the HA after receipt at the HA.
- (d) The only acceptable evidence to establish the date of mailing of a late offer, modification, or withdrawal sent either by registered or certifled mail is the U.S. or Canadian Postal Service postmark both on the envelope or wrapper and on the original receipt from the U.S. or Canadian Postal Service. Both postmarks must show a legible date or the offer, modification, or withdrawal shall be processed as if mailed late. "Postmark" means a printed, stamped, or otherwise placed impression (exclusive of a postage meter machine impression) that is readily identifiable without further action as having been supplied and affixed by employees of the U.S. or Canadian Postal Service on the date of mailing. Therefore, offerors should request the postal clerk to place a hand cancellation bull's-eye postmark on both the receipt and the envelope or wrapper.
- (e) The only acceptable evidence to establish the time of receipt at the HA is the time/date stamp of HA on the offer wrapper or other documentary evidence of receipt maintained by the HA.

- (f) The only acceptable evidence to establish the date of mailing of a late offer, modification, or withdrawal sent by Express Mail Next Day Service-Post Office to Addressee is the date entered by the post office receiving clerk on the "Express Mail Next Day Service-Post Office to Addressee" label and the postmark on both the envelope or wrapper and on the original receipt from the U.S. Postal Service. "Postmark" has the same meaning as defined in paragraph (c) of this provision, excluding postmarks of the Canadian Postal Service. Therefore, offerors should request the postal clerk to place a legible hand cancellation bull's eye postmark on both the receipt and the envelope or wrapper.
- (g) Notwithstanding paragraph (a) of this provision, a late modification of an otherwise successful offer that makes its terms more favorable to the HA will be considered at any time it is received and may be accepted.
- (h) If this solicitation is a request for proposals, proposals may be withdrawn by written notice, or if authorized by this solicitation, by telegram (including mailgram) or facsimile machine transmission received at any time before award. Proposals may be withdrawn in person by a offeror or its authorized representative if the identity of the person requesting withdrawal is established and the person signs a receipt for the offer before award. If this solicitation is an invitation for bids, bids may be withdrawn at any time prior to bid opening.

7. Contract Award

- (a) The HA will award a contract resulting from this solicitation to the responsible offeror whose offer conforming to the solicitation will be most advantageous to the HA, cost or price and other factors, specified elsewhere in this solicitation, considered.
- (b) The HA may
 - (1) reject any or all offers if such action is in the HA's interest,
 - (2) accept other than the lowest offer,
 - (3) waive informalities and minor irregularities in offers received, and (4) award more than one contract for all or part of the requirements stated.
- (c) If this solicitation is a request for proposals, the HA may award a contract on the basis of initial offers received, without discussions. Therefore, each initial offer should contain the offeror's best terms from a cost or price and technical standpoint.

- (d) A written award or acceptance of offer mailed or otherwise furnished to the successful offeror within the time for acceptance specified in the offer shall result in a binding contract without further action by either party. If this solicitation is a request for proposals, before the offer's specified expiration time, the HA may accept an offer, whether or not there are negotiations after its receipt, unless a written notice of withdrawal is received before award. Negotiations conducted after receipt of an offer do not constitute a rejection or counteroffer by the HA.
- (e) Neither financial data submitted with an offer, nor representations concerning facilities or financing, will form a part of the resulting contract.

8. Service of Protest

Any protest against the award of a contract pursuant to this solicitation shall be served on the HA by obtaining written and dated acknowledgment of receipt from the HA at the address shown on the cover of this solicitation. The determination of the HA with regard to such protest or to proceed to award notwithstanding such protest shall be final unless appealed by the protestor.

9. Offer Submission

Offers shall be submitted as follows and shall be enclosed in a sealed envelope and addressed to the office specified in the solicitation. The proposal shall show the hour and date specified in the solicitation for receipt, the solicitation number, and the name and address of the offeror, on the face of the envelope.

It is very important that the offer be properly identified on the face of the envelope as set forth above in order to insure that the date and time of receipt is stamped on the face of the offer envelope. Receiving procedures are: date and time stamp those envelopes identified as proposals and deliver them immediately to the appropriate contracting official, and only date stamp those envelopes which do not contain identification of the contents and deliver them to the appropriate procuring activity only through the routine mail delivery procedure.

[Describe bid or proposal preparation instructions here:]

General Contract Conditions

Non-Construction

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Office of Public and Indian Housing

OMB Approval No. 2577-0180 (exp. 4/30/96)

Public Reporting Burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 0.08 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Reports Management Officer, Office of Information Policies and Systems, U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Washington, D.C. 20410-3600; and to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (2577-0180), Washington, D.C. 20503. Do not send this completed form to either of these addressees.

1. Definitions

The following definitions are applicable to this contract:

- (a) "Authority or Housing Authority (HA)" means the ______ Housing Authority.
- (b) "Contract" means the contract entered into between the Authority and the Contractor. It includes the contract form, the Certifications and Representations, these contract clauses, and the scope of work. It includes all formal changes to any of those documents by addendum, Change Order, or other modification.
- (c) "Contractor" means the person or other entity entering into the contract with the Authority to perform all of the work required under the contract.
- (d) "Day" means calendar days, unless otherwise stated.
- (e) "HUD" means the Secretary of Housing and Urban development, his delegates, successors, and assigns, and the officers and employees of the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development acting for and on behalf of the Secretary.

2. Changes

- (a) The HA may at any time, by written order, and without notice to the sureties, if any, make changes within the general scope of this contract in the services to be performed or supplies to be delivered.
- (b) If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the hourly rate, the not-to-exceed amount of the contract, or the time required for, performance of any part of the work under this contract, whether or not changed by the order, or otherwise affects the conditions of this contract, the HA shall make an equitable adjustment in the not-to-exceed amount, the hourly rate, the delivery schedule, or other affected terms, and shall modify the contract accordingly.
- (c) The Contractor must assert its right to an equitable adjustment under this clause within 30 days from the date of receipt of the written order. However, if the HA decides that the facts justify it, the HA may receive and act upon a proposal submitted before final payment of the contract.
- (d) Failure to agree to any adjustment shall be a dispute under clause Disputes, herein. However, nothing in this clause shall excuse the Contractor from proceeding with the contract as changed.
- (e) No services for which an additional cost or fee will be charged by the Contractor shall be furnished without the prior written consent of the HA.

3. Disputes

- (a) All disputes arising under or relating to this contract, including any claims for damages for the alleged breach thereof which are not disposed of by agreement, shall be resolved under this clause.
- (b) All claims by the Contractor shall be made in writing and submitted to the HA. A claim by the HA against the Contractor shall be subject to a written decision by the HA.
- (c) The HA shall, with reasonable promptness, but in no event in no more than 60 days, render a decision concerning any claim hereunder. Unless the Contractor, within 30 days after receipt of the HA's decision, shall notify the HA in writing that it takes exception to such decision, the decision shall be final and conclusive.

- (d) Provided the Contractor has (1) given the notice within the time stated in paragraph (c) above, and (2) excepted its claim relating to such decision from the final release, and (3) brought suit against the HA not later than one year after receipt of final payment, or if final payment has not been made, not later than one year after the Contractor has had a reasonable time to respond to a written request by the HA that it submit a final voucher and release, whichever is earlier, then the HA's decision shall not be final or conclusive, but the dispute shall be determined on the merits by a court of competent jurisdiction.
- (e) The Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of this contract, pending final resolution of any request for relief, claim, appeal, or action arising under the contract, and comply with any decision of the HA.

4. Termination for Convenience and Default

- (a) The HA may terminate this contract in whole, or from time to time in part, for the HA's convenience or the failure of the Contractor to fulfill the contract obligations (default). The HA shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a written Notice of Termination specifying the nature, extent, and effective date of the termination. Upon receipt of the notice, the Contractor shall: (1) immediately discontinue all services affected (unless the notice directs otherwise), and (2) deliver to the HA all information, reports, papers, and other materials accumulated or generated in performing this contract, whether completed or in process.
- (b) If the termination is for the convenience of the HA, the HA shall be liable only for payment for services rendered before the effective date of the termination.
- (c) If the termination is due to the failure of the Contractor to fulfill its obligations under the contract (default), the HA may (1) require the Contractor to deliver to it, in the manner and to the extent directed by the HA, any work as described in subparagraph (a)(2) above, and compensation be determined in accordance with the Changes clause; (2) take over the work and prosecute the same to completion by contract or otherwise, and the Contractor shall be liable for any additional cost incurred by the HA; and (3) withhold any payments to the Contractor, for the purpose of set-off or partial payment, as the case may be, of amounts owed the HA by the Contractor.
- (d) If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations (default), it is determined that the Contractor had not failed, the termination shall be deemed to have been effected for the convenience of the HA, and the Contractor shall be entitled to payment as described in paragraph (b) above.
- (e) Any disputes with regard to this clause are expressly made subject to the terms of clause titled **Disputes** herein.

5. Assignment of Contract

The Contractor shall not assign or transfer any interest in this contract; except that claims for monies due or to become due from the HA under the contract may be assigned to a bank, trust company, or other financial institution. If the Contractor is a partnership, this contract shall inure to the benefit of the surviving or remaining member(s) of such partnership approved by the HA.

6. Certflicate and Release

Prior to final payment under this contract, or prior to settlement upon termination of this contract, and as a condition precedent thereto, the Contractor shall execute and deliver to the HA a certificate and release, in a form acceptable to the HA, of all claims against the HA by the Contractor under and by virtue of this contract, other than such claims, if any, as may be specifically excepted by the Contractor in stated amounts set forth therein.

7. Examination and Retention of Contractor's Records

- (a) The HA, HUD, or Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives shall, until 3 years after final payment under this contract, have access to and the right to examine any of the Contractor's directly pertinent books, documents, papers, or other records involving transactions related to this contract for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions.
- (b) The Contractor agrees to include in first-tier subcontracts under this contract a clause substantially the same as paragraph (a) above. "Subcontract," as used in this clause, excludes purchase orders not exceeding \$10,000.
- (c) The periods of access and examination in paragraphs (a) and (b) above for records relating to (1) appeals under the clause titled **Disputes**, (2) litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this contract, or (3) costs and expenses of this contract to which the HA, HUD, or Comptroller General or any of their duly authorized representatives has taken exception shall continue until disposition of such appeals, litigation, claims, or exceptions.

8. Organizational Conflicts of Interest

- (a) The Contractor warrants that to the best of its knowledge and belief and except as otherwise disclosed, it does not have any organizational conflict of interest which is defined as a situation in which the nature of work under this contract and a Contractor's organizational, financial, contractual or other interests are such that:
- Award of the contract may result in an unfair competitive advantage; or
- (2) The Contractor's objectivity in performing the contract work may be impaired.
- (b) The Contractor agrees that if after award it discovers an organizational conflict of interest with respect to this contract or any task/ delivery order under the contract, he or she shall make an immediate and full disclosure in writing to the Contracting Officer which shall include a description of the action which the Contractor has taken or intends to take to eliminate or neutralize the conflict. The HA may, however, terminate the contract or task/delivery order for the convenience of the HA if it would be in the best interest of the HA.
- (c) In the event the Contractor was aware of an organizational conflict of interest before the award of this contract and intentionally did not disclose the conflict to the Contracting Officer, the HA may terminate the contract for default.
- (d) The terms of this clause shall be included in all subcontracts and consulting agreements wherein the work to be performed is similar to the service provided by the prime Contractor. The Contractor shall include in such subcontracts and consulting agreements any necessary provisions to eliminate or neutralize conflicts of interest.

9. Inspection and Acceptance

(a) The HA has the right to review, require correction, if necessary, and accept the work products produced by the Contractor. Such review(s) shall be carried out within 30 days so as to not impede the work of the

Contractor. Any product of work shall be deemed accepted as submitted if the HA does not issue written comments and/or required corrections within 30 days from the date of receipt of such product from the Contractor.

- (b) The Contractor shall make any required corrections promptly at no additional charge and return a revised copy of the product to the HA within 7 days of notification or a later date if extended by the HA.
- c) Failure by the Contractor to proceed with reasonable promptness to make necessary corrections shall be a default. If the Contractor's submission of corrected work remains unacceptable, the HA may terminate this contract (or the task order involved) or reduce the contract price or cost to reflect the reduced value of services received.

10. Rights in Data (Ownership and Proprietary Interest).

The HA shall have exclusive ownership of, all proprietary interest in, and the right to full and exclusive possession of all information, materials and documents discovered or produced by Contractor pursuant to the terms of this Contract, including but not limited to reports, memoranda or letters concerning the research and reporting tasks of this Contract.

11. Interest of Members of Congress

No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States of America or Resident Commissioner shall be admitted to any share or part of this contract or to any benefit to arise therefrom, but this provision shall not be construed to extend to this contract if made with a corporation for its general benefit.

12. Interest of Members, Officers, or Employees and Former Members, Officers, or Employees

No member, officer, or employee of the HA, no member of the governing body of the locality in which the project is situated, no member of the governing body in which the HA was activated, and no other pubic official of such locality or localities who exercises any functions or responsibilities with respect to the project, shall, during his or her tenure, or for one year thereafter, have any interest, direct or indirect, in this contract or the proceeds thereof.

13. Limitation on Payments to Influence Certain Federal Transactions

(a) Definitions. As used in this clause:

"Agency", as defined in 5 U.S.C. 552(f), includes Federal executive departments and agencies as well as independent regulatory commissions and Government corporations, as defined in 31 U.S.C. 9101(1).

"Covered Federal Action" means any of the following Federal ctions:

- (1) The awarding of any Federal contract;
- (2) The making of any Federal grant;
- (3) The making of any Federal loan;
- (4) The entering into of any cooperative agreement; and,
- (5) The extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

Covered Federal action does not include receiving from an agency a commitment providing for the United States to insure or guarantee a loan.

"Indian tribe" and "tribal organization" have the meaning provided in section 4 of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 450B). Alaskan Natives are included under the definitions of Indian tribes in that Act.

"Influencing or attempting to influence" means making, with the intent to influence, any communication to or appearance before an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with any covered Federal action.

"Local government" means a unit of government in a State and, if chartered, established, or otherwise recognized by a State for the performance of a governmental duty, including a local public authority, a special district, an intrastate district, a council of governments, a sponsor group representative organization, and any other instrumentality of a local government.

"Officer or employee of an agency" includes the following individuals who are employed by an agency:

- An individual who is appointed to a position in the Government under title 5, U.S.C., including a position under a temporary appointment;
- (2) A member of the uniformed services as defined in section 202, title 18, U.S.C.;
- (3) A special Government employee as defined in section 202, title 18, U.S.C.; and,
- (4) An individual who is a member of a Federal advisory committee, as defined by the Federal Advisory Committee Act, title 5, appendix 2.

"Person" means an individual, corporation, company, association, authority, firm, partnership, society, State, and local government, regardless of whether such entity is operated for profit or not for profit. This term excludes an Indian tribe, tribal organization, or other Indian organization with respect to expenditures specifically permitted by other Federal law.

consistent with the amount normally paid for such services in the private sector.

"Recipient" includes all contractors, subcontractors at any tier, and subgrantees at any tier of the recipient of funds received in connection with a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. The term excludes an Indian tribe, tribal organization, or any other Indian organization with respect to expenditures specifically permitted by other Federal law.

"Regularly employed" means, with respect to an officer or employee of a person requesting or receiving a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, an officer or employee who is employed by such person for at least 130 working days within one year immediately preceding the date of the submission that initiates agency consideration of such person for receipt of such contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. An officer or employee who is employed by such person for less than 130 working days within one year immediately preceding the date of submission that initiates agency consideration of such person shall be considered to be regularly employed as soon as he or she is employed by such person for 130 working days.

"State" means a State of the United States, the District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, a territory of possession of the united States, an agency or instrumentality of a State, and a multi-State, regional, or interstate entity having governmental duties and powers.

- (b). Prohibition.
- (1) Section 1352 of title 31, U.S.C. provides in part that no appropriated funds may be expended by the recipient of a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement to pay any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with any of the following covered Federal actions: the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making

of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2) The prohibition does not apply as follows:

(i) Agency and legislative liaison by Own Employees.

(A) The prohibition on the use of appropriated funds, in paragraph (1) of this section, does not apply in the case of a payment of reasonable compensation made to an officer or employee of a person requesting or receiving a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, if the payment is for agency and legislative activities not directly related to a covered Federal action.

(B) For purposes of paragraph (b)(2)(i)(A) of this clause, providing any information specifically requested by an agency or Congress is permitted at any time.

(C) The following agency and legislative liaison activities are permitted at any time only where they are not related to a specific solicitation for any covered Federal action:

(1) Discussing with an agency (including individual demonstrations) the qualities and characteristics of the person's products or services, conditions or terms of sale, and service capabilities; and,

(2) Technical discussions and other activities regarding the application or adaptation of the person's products or services for an agency's use.

(D) The following agency and legislative liaison activities are permitted where they are prior to formal solicitation of any covered Federal action:

 Providing any information not specifically requested but necessary for an agency to make an informed decision about initiation of a covered Federal action;

(2) Technical discussions regarding the preparation of an unsolicited proposal prior to its official submission; and

(3) Capability presentations by persons seeking awards from an agency pursuant to the provisions of the Small Business Act, as amended by Public Law 95-507 and other subsequent amendments.

(E) Only those activities expressly authorized by subdivision (b)(2)(i)(A) of this clause are permitted under this clause.

(ii) Professional and technical services.

(A) The prohibition on the use of appropriated funds, in subparagraph (b)(1) of this clause, does not apply in the case of-

(1) A payment of reasonable compensation made to an officer or employee of a person requesting or receiving a covered Federal action or an extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of a covered Federal action, if payment is for professional or technical services rendered directly in the preparation, submission, or negotiation of any bid, proposal, or application for that Federal action or for meeting requirements imposed by or pursuant to law as a condition for receiving that Federal action.

(2) Any reasonable payment to a person, other than an officer or employee of a person requesting or receiving a covered Federal action or an extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of a covered Federal action if the payment is for professional or technical services rendered directly in the preparation, submission, or negotiation of any bid, proposal, or application for that Federal action or for meeting requirements imposed by or pursuant to law as a condition for receiving that Federal action. Persons other than officers or employees of a person requesting or receiving a covered Federal action include consultants and trade associations.

(B) For purposes of subdivision (b)(2)(ii)(A) of clause, "professional and technical services" shall be limited to advice and analysis directly applying any professional or technical discipline.

- (C) Requirements imposed by orpursuant to law as a condition for receiving a covered Federal award include those required by law or regulation, or reasonably expected to be required by law or regulation, and any other requirements in the actual award documents.
- (D) Only those services expressly authorized by subdivisions (b)(2)(ii)(A)(1) and (2) of this section are permitted under this clause.
 - (iii) Selling activities by independent sales representatives.

The prohibition on the use of appropriated funds, in subparagraph (b)(1) of this clause, does not apply to the following selling activities before an agency by independent sales representatives, provided such activities are prior to formal solicitation by an agency and are specifically limited to the merits of the matter:

- (A) Discussing with an agency (including individual demonstration) the qualities and characteristics of the person's products or services, conditions or terms of sale, and service capabilities; and
- (B) Technical discussions and other activities regarding the application or adaptation of the person's products or services for an agency's use.
- (c) Agreement. In accepting any contract, grant, cooperative agreement, or loan resulting from this solicitation, the person submitting the offer agrees not to make any payment prohibited by this clause.
- (d) Penalties. Any person who makes an expenditure prohibited under paragraph (b) of this clause shall be subject to a civil penalties as provided for by 31 U.S.C. 1352. An imposition of a civil penalty does not prevent the Government from seeking any other remedy that may be applicable.
- (e) Cost Allowability. Nothing in this clause is to be interpreted to make allowable or reasonable any costs which would be unallowable or unreasonable in accordance with Part 31 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR), or OMB Circulars dealing with cost allowability for recipients of assistance agreements. Conversely, costs made specifically unallowable by the requirements in this clause will not be made allowable under any of the provisions of FAR Part 31 or the relevant OMB Circulars.

14. Equal Employment Opportunity

During the performance of this contract, the Contractor agrees as follows:

- (a) The Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- (b) The Contractor shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, (1) employment, (2) upgrading, (3) demotion, (4) transfer, (5) recruitment or recruitment advertising, (6) layoff or termination, (7) rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and (8) selection for training, including apprenticeship.
- (c) The Contractor shall post in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment the notices to be provided by the Contracting Officer that explain this clause.
- (d) The Contractor shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- (e) The Contractor shall send, to each labor union or representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, the notice to be provided by the Contracting Officer advising the labor union or workers' representative of the

Contractor's commitments under this clause, and post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.

- (f) The Contractor shall comply with Executive Order 11246, as amended, and the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Lahor.
- (g) The Contractor shall furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246, as amended and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto. The Contractor shall permit access to its books, records, and accounts by the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.
- (h) In the event of a determination that the Contractor is not in compliance with this clause or any rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part, and the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts, or federally assisted construction contracts under the procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246, as amended. In addition, sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked against the Contractor as provided in Executive Order 11246, as amended, the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
- (i) The Contractor shall include the terms and conditions of this clause in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by the rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued under Executive Order 11246, as amended, so that these terms and conditions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The Contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development or the Secretary of Labor may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance; provided that if the Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

15. Dissemination or Disclosure of Information

No information or material shall be disseminated or disclosed to the general public, the news media, or any person or organization without prior express written approval by the HA.

16. Contractor's Status

It is understood that the Contractor is an independent contractor and is not to be considered an employee of the HA, or assume any right, privilege or duties of an employee, and shall save harmless the HA and its employees from claims suits, actions and costs of every description resulting from the Contractor's activities on behalf of the HA in connection with this Agreement.

17. Other Contractors

HA may undertake or award other contracts for additional work at or near the site(s) of the work under this contract. The contractor shall fully cooperate with the other contractors and with HA and HUD employees and shall carefully adapt scheduling and performing the work under this contract to accommodate the additional work, heeding any direction that may be provided by the Contracting Officer. The contractor shall not commit or permit any act that will interfere with the performance of work by any other contractor or HA employee.

18. Liens

The Contractor is prohibited from placing a lien on HA's property. This prohibition shall apply to all subcontractors.

- 19. Training and Employment Opportunities for Residents in the Project Area (Section 3, HUD Act of 1968; 24 CFR 135)(Applicable to contracts in excess of \$500,000)
- (a) The work to be performed under this contract is on a project assisted under a program providing direct Federal financial assistance from HUD and is subject to the requirements of section 3 of the HUD Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u. Section 3 requires that to the greatest extent feasible opportunities for training and employment be given lower income residents of the project area and contracts for work in connection with the project be awarded to business concerns which are located in, or owned in substantial part by persons residing in the area of the project.
- (b) The parties to this contract will comply with the provisions of Section 3 and the regulations issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of HUD set forth in 24 CFR part 135, and all applicable rules and orders of HUD issued thereunder prior to the execution of this contract. The parties to this contract certify and agree that they are under no contractual or other disability which would prevent them from complying with these requirements.
- (c) The contractor will send to each labor organization or representative of workers with which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, if any, a notice advising the organization of the contractor's commitments under this clause and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment or training.

- (d) The contractor will include this clause in every subcontract for work in connection with the project and will, at the direction of the applicant for or recipient of Federal financial assistance, take appropriate action pursuant to the subcontract upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of regulations issued by the Secretary of HUD, 24 CFR part 135. The contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where it has notice or knowledge that the latter has been found in violation of these regulations and will not award any subcontract unless the subcontractor has first provided it with a preliminary statement of ability to comply with the requirements of these regulations.
- (e) Compliance with the provisions of section 3, the regulations set forth at 24 CFR part 135, and all applicable rules and orders of HUD issued thereunder prior to the execution of the contract shall be a condition of the Federal financial assistance provided to the project, binding upon the applicant or recipient for such assistance, its successors, and assigns. Failure to fulfill these requirements shall subject the applicant or recipient, its contractors and subcontractors, its successors, and assigns to those sanctions specified by the grant or loan agreement or contract through which the Federal assistance is provided, and to such sanctions as are specified by 24 CFR part 135.



Ohio Department of Public Safety

Division of Homeland Security http://www.homelandsecurity.ohio.gov

GOVERNMENT BUSINESS AND FUNDING CONTRACTS

In accordance with section 2909.33 of the Ohio Revised Code

DECLARATION REGARDING MATERIAL ASSISTANCE/NONASSISTANCE TO A TERRORIST ORGANIZATION

This form serves as a declaration of the provision of material assistance to a terrorist organization or organization that supports terrorism as identified by the U.S. Department of State Terrorist Exclusion List (see the Ohio Homeland Security Division website for a reference copy of the Terrorist Exclusion List).

Any answer of "yes" to any question, or the failure to answer "no" to any question on this declaration shall serve as a disclosure that material assistance to an organization identified on the U.S. Department of State Terrorist Exclusion List has been provided. Failure to disclose the provision of material assistance to such an organization or knowingly making false statements regarding material assistance to such an organization is a felony of the fifth degree.

For the purposes of this declaration, "material support or resources" means currency, payment instruments, other financial securities, funds, transfer of funds, and financial services that are in excess of one hundred dollars, as well as communications, lodging, training, safe houses, false documentation or identification, communications equipment, facilities, weapons, lethal substances, explosives, personnel, transportation, and other physical assets, except medicine or religious materials.

LAST NAME	ST NAME FIRST NAME		MIDDLE INITIAL		
HOME ADDRESS					
CITY	STATE		ZIP	COUNTY	
	0		 .		
HOME PHONE	L.,,,	WORK PHONE			
COMPLETE THE SECTION ONLY	/ IE VOI	LADE A COMIDAN	IV DUCINIESS OF ODG	. A AUT A T	ION
COMPLETE THIS SECTION ONLY BUSINESS/ORGANIZATION NAME	Y IF YOU	J ARE A COMPA	NY, BUSINESS OR ORG	ANIZA I	ION
BUSINESS/ORGANIZATION NAME					
BUSINESS ADDRESS				·	
CITY STATE ZIP COUNTY					
PHONE NUMBER					
	D	ECLARATION			
In accordance with division (A)(2)(b) of section 2909.32 of the Ohio Revised Code					
For each question, indicate either "yes," or "no" in the space provided. Responses must be truthful to the best of your knowledge.					
1. Are you a member of an organization on the U.S. Department of State Terrorist Exclusion List?					
Yes No					
[_] 165 NO					
2. Have you used any position of prominenc	e vou h	ave with any count	ry to persuade others to	sunnort	an organization
on the U.S. Department of State Terrorist			ily to persuade officis to	dapport	arr organization
Tyes TNo	. , _ , _ , _ ,				
					l

Signature

GC	DAEKUMENT ROSINESS AND LONDING CONTRACTS - CONTINUED
3.	Have you knowingly solicited funds or other things of value for an organization on the U.S. Department of State Terrorist Exclusion List? Yes No
4.	Have you solicited any individual for membership in an organization on the U.S. Department of State Terrorist Exclusion List? Yes No
5.	Have you committed an act that you know, or reasonably should have known, affords "material support or resources" to an organization on the U.S. Department of State Terrorist Exclusion List? Yes No
6.	Have you hired or compensated a person you knew to be a member of an organization on the U.S. Department of State Terrorist Exclusion List, or a person you knew to be engaged in planning, assisting, or carrying out an act of terrorism? Yes No
as: U.: the	the event of a denial of a government contract or government funding due to a positive indication that material sistance has been provided to a terrorist organization, or an organization that supports terrorism as identified by the S. Department of State Terrorist Exclusion List, a review of the denial may be requested. The request must be sent to e Ohio Department of Public Safety's Division of Homeland Security. The request forms and instructions for filing can be und on the Ohio Homeland Security Division website.
	CERTIFICATION
kn- fai Te fel qu De	nereby certify that the answers I have made to all of the questions on this declaration are true to the best of my owledge. I understand that if this declaration is not completed in its entirety, it will not be processed and I will be tomatically disqualified. I understand that I am responsible for the correctness of this declaration. I understand that lure to disclose the provision of material assistance to an organization identified on the U.S. Department of State errorist Exclusion List, or knowingly making false statements regarding material assistance to such an organization is a ony of the fifth degree. I understand that any answer of "yes" to any question, or the failure to answer "no" to any destion on this declaration shall serve as a disclosure that material assistance to an organization identified on the U.S. epartment of State Terrorist Exclusion List has been provided by myself or my organization. If I am signing this on behalf a company, business or organization, I hereby acknowledge that I have the authority to make this certification on behalf the company, business or organization referenced on page 1 of this declaration.
х	

Date

Non-Collusive Affidavit

Sate of	
County of	_
	, being first sworn, deposes and
says: That they are	(president, sole owner, partner,
that no one conspired, connived or agree person, to put in a sham bid or to refrain directly or indirectly sought by agreemen with any person, to fix the bid price of the overhead, profit or cost element of said to	(firm name) the party making the sal or bid is genuine and not collusive or sham; ed, directly or indirectly, with any bidder or from bidding, and has not in any manner, at or collusion, or communication or conference, a affiant or of any other bidder, or to fix any bid price, to secure any advantage against the oposed contract: and that all statements in said
Signature of Bidder:	(if individual)
Signature of Bidder:	(if partnership)
Signature of Bidder:	(if corporation)
Subscribed and sworn to before me this	day of, 202
(Notary Publi	c), My commission expires, 202

BUTLER METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY

Woman Business Enterprise / Minority Business Enterprise WBE / MBE FORM

CONTRACTOR INFORMATION	
NAME:	
ADDRESS:	
TYPE OF BUSINESS:	
OHIO LICENSE NO:	
WOMEN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (WBE)	
☐ YES ☐ NO	
IF YES, PLEASE PROVIDE:	
CERTIFICATION NUMBER:	
EXPIRATION DATE:	
MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (MBE)	
☐ YES ☐ NO	
IF YES, PLEASE PROVIDE:	
CERTIFICATION NUMBER:	
EXPIRATION DATE:	
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	
CURRENT NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES:	***************************************
CURRENT NUMBER OF WOMEN EMPLOYEES:	
CURRENT NUMBER OF MINORITY EMPLOYEES:	•
I hereby certify that it is the policy of the undersigned to comply with all existing laws prohibiting discrimination in all aspects of employment due to race, color, creed, sex, age, religion, national origin, marital status, receipt of public assistance or disability. This shall be accomplished substantially by the following action: Non discrimination in RECRUITING, HIRING, TRAINING, PROMOTING, SUBCONTRACTING, DEMOTION, LAYOFF, and/or TERMINATION.	n
Signature Date	